IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 00-41063
(Summary Cal endar)

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
ver sus

GQUSTAVO ESPI NOZA- SANCHEZ, al so known
as Jose Antoni o Barreto,

Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas
(C 99- CR-372-1)
My 17, 2001
Bef ore H G3 NBOTHAM W ENER, and BARKSDALE, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *

Gust avo Espi noza- Sanchez appeals his conviction and sentence
for aiding and abetting possession of cocaine with intent to
distribute in violation of 21 U.S.C. 8§ 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(A) and
18 US.C § 2. He argues that the district court erred in
increasing his offense level by two points for possession of a

firearm during the commssion of a drug offense pursuant to

U.S.S.G § 2D1.1(b)(1).

Pursuant to 5THCGR R 47.5, the court has determ ned
that this opinion should not be published and is not precedent
except under the limted circunstances set forth in 5TH QR
R 47.5. 4.



A defendant's sentence should be increased by two |evels
whenever, in a crinme involving the manufacture, inport, export,
trafficking, or possession of drugs, the defendant possessed a
danger ous weapon. See U S.S.G § 2D1.1(b)(1). “The adj ust nent
shoul d be applied if the weapon was present, unless it is clearly
i nprobabl e t hat t he weapon was connected with the offense.” [d. at
coment. (n.3).

W review a sentencing court’s factual determ nations for
clear error. Here, it 1s uncontested that the firearm the
cocai ne, the drug paraphernalia, and Espinoza were all present in
the apartnent and the apartnent’s garage. Although Espinoza did
not own or live in the apartnent, he had access to the apartnent,
whi ch was used for drug trafficking. The district court found that
the firearmwas accessi ble to Espi noza because it was “not shut up
within a hidden conpartnent.” Moreover, the presence of a firearm
within the apartnment was foreseeable to Espinoza because firearns

are tools of the trade for drug traffickers. See United States v.

Agui | era-Zapata, 901 F.2d 1209, 1215 (5th G r. 1990).

The district court found that it was not “clearly inprobable”
that the firearm was connected to the offense and that an
enhancenment under U . S.S. G § 2D1.1(b) was warranted. Espinoza has
not shown that this or any other factual findings of the sentencing
court were clearly erroneous.

AFFI RVED.



